fde

Hightown

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Annual Report
and Financial Statements
For The Year Ended
31 March 2018

Co-Operative and Community Benefit Society Registration No. 18077R
Regulator of Social Housing Registration No. 12179

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Contents

Page

Board Members, Executive Directors, Advisors and Bankers

1

Chairman's Report

2

Strategic Report

3

.
o
.
o
.
.
o
¡
.
o

Our Mission, Vision and Values
Our Objectives and Strategy
Our Business Model
Our Performance
Risks and Uncertainties
Employees
Governance
Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement
Statement of lnternal Controls
Board Members Responsibilities

Financial Statements
lndependent Auditor's Report to the members of
Hightown HouSing Association Ltd

29

Statement of Comprehensive lncome

31

Statement of Changes in Reserves

32

Statement of Financial Position

33

Statement of Cash Flows

34

Notes to the Financial Statements

35

Page 2

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Board Members, Executive Directors, Advisors and Bankers
Board
Chair

Bob Macnaughton Chartered Accountant and Former Company
Chief Executive

Vice Chairs

Oliver Burns
James Steel

Former Chief Financial Officer
Commercial Consultant and former banker

Other Elected Members

Steve Johnson

Former Property lnfrastructure Director for
lnternational Data Centre and Former Chartered
Surveyor
Former Business Owner & CEO
Housing Consultant
lT Director
Retired Property Fund Manager and Chartered
Surveyor (to 9/04/18)

Tony Keen
Frances Kneller

Andrew Rose
Cliff Hawkins

Co-opted Members

Sarah Pickup

Deputy Chief Executive Local Government Association

(from 10/0B/17)
Cordelia Pace

Senior Legal Counsel (from 10108117)

Executive Directors
The executive directors hold no interest in the Association's shares and act as executives within the
authority delegated by the Board.
Chief Executive

David Bogle

Executive Directors

Dave Black
Mark Carter
Andrew Royall
David Skinner
Susan Wallis
George Edkins

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

of Care and Supported Housing
of Business Transformation
of Development (from 15106117)
of Financial Services
of Operations

of Development (to 14106117)

Company Secretary

David Skinner

Registered Office

Hightown House
Maylands Avenue
Hemel Hempstead
Herts HP2 4XH

ExternalAuditor

BDO LLP
55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU

Principal Solicitors

Winckworth Sherwood LLP
Minerva House
5 Montague Close
London, SEI 9BB

Principal Bankers

Pennington Manches LLP
9400 Garsington Road
Oxford Business Park
Oxford, OX4 2HN

Lloyds Bank plc
PuUt¡c & Community Sector
25 Gresham Street
London, EC2V 7HN

Page 1

Hightown Housing Association Limited

tsoard Report
For the year ended 31 March 2018

CHAIRMANIS STATEMENT
I am pleased to be able to report on a very successful year for Hightown during which we provided
more affordable homes and supported housing services than ever before. We also generated a
record surplus for the year of Ê16.7m which we intend to invest back into the provision of new homes.
Our annual turnover increased from Ê62.8m to f69.4m but, more importantly, we built over 640 new
affordable homes for rent and shared ownership - a bumper development year for Hightown and an
increase in our housing stock of over 10%.

Our staff worked very hard to plan for and to accommodate the resultant large increase in lettings,
management and maintenance activities and, overall, our performance indicators stood up well during
the year.

The huge pressure on social care budgets made it a challenging year for our care and supported
housing activities but we are pleased to have been able to use buildings vacated following budget
cuts for other services, particularly for housing asylum seekers and people with mental health
problems.

The Board wants Hightown to continue to use its assets to build more affordable homes and we are
very pleased to be able to increase our annual targets from 350 new homes to 400/450 new homes
as a result of securing a strong future programme backed by committed new funding. We welcome
the Government commitment to allow rent increases from 2O2O onwards after four years of rent
reductions which will boost our capacity.
Risk and compliance issues continue to dominate our Board agendas - perhaps inevitably following
the tragedy of Grenfell Tower - and this has led to further debate about the Association's primary
social and charitable focus in a rapidly changing world.
Nationally, we continue to support the Homes for Cathy group (now numbering 72 members) which
works to ensure that housing associations play their part in reducing the rising numbers of rough
sleepers and homeless families in temporary accommodation. This links strongly to the origins of
many housing associations which, like Hightown, were formed in the post'Cathy Come Home' era
over 50 years ago.

This is my first year as Chair of Hightown (and third year as a Board member) and I must record my
grateful thanks to my predecessor, Tony Keen, who has stood down after three productive years as
Hightown's Chair. I am extremely proud to represent such an effective organisation as Hightown,
which has delivered outstanding performance in building new homes and providing excellent housing
support.
None of this could be achieved without the hard work and dedication of the staff at Hightown. I would
like to personally thank them for their contribution.

Thanks are also due to my other voluntary Board members and to our many supporters, consultants,
contractors and stakeholders without whom we could not have come so far.

With an experienced management team and strong development pipeline backed by undrawn
committed funding facilities, the board looks foruvard with confidence to the year ahead.

Bob
Chairman
5 July 2018

hton
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Mission. Vision and Values
Mission
As a charity, we build new homes and provide excellent housing and support.

Vision
We believe everyone should have a home and the support they need

Values

.
o
o
o

Our residents and service users come first.
We treat people with respect, promoting independence and choice
We value our staff who are key to delivering excellent service.
We are cost effective without compromising standards or safety.

Our Obiectives and Stratesv
Background and objectives
Hightown is a charitable housing association which was founded in Hemel Hempstead in 1967. lt has
merged with a number of local housing associations in west Herts, including Praetorian H.A. (f 995)
and St. Albans District and Churches H.A. (2003), which were also founded by volunteers in the late
1960's in response to the homelessness crisis at that time..
Hightown now owns and manages 6,000 homes, provides care and supported housing in around 80
projects and has a target to develop around 400 new affordable homes a yeat. Hightown operates
mainly in Hertfordshire and Buckinghamshire but also has affordable housing in Bedfordshire and
care and support projects in Berkshire.
Hightown's centraloffice is on the Maylands lndustrial Estate in Hemel Hempstead and all operational
activities are contained within an area which is no more than one hour's travelfrom that office.

Hightown's primary objectives are:
to provide excellent services to its existing residents and service users; and
to develop new affordable housing and services to meet the urgent needs of people who are
vulnerable or disabled or who cannot afford to buy or rent housing at market rates in the

¡
.

area.

Along with other'traditional' housing associations, Hightown has responded to local housing needs
over the past 50 years by developing a wide range of housing and services for different client groups.
The Association has a culture of being an agile, 'can do' organisation that can move quickly in
response to changing lócal housing and support needs.
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The Board's objectives are contained in the Strategic Plan Objectives 2016-2019 and are as follows

Property Development

o
.
o
o

Develop at least 350 new affordable homes a year and maintain a two year fonvard supply of
at least 350 homes ayeat
Develop each year an average of 150 of those new affordable homes on Hightown sites
Achieve development outcomes in line with or in excess of appraisal parameters
Achieve at least B0% customer satisfaction with new homes

Financial Viability

¡
.
¡
¡
o
o

Achieve an annual return on investment of at least 3.5%
Maintain gearing at less than 60%
Maintain interest cover at more than 140%
Ensure not less than 40% of overall funding is at fixed rates
Ensure sufficient loan facilities are in place to cover the next 12 months'anticipated spend
and sufficient properties have been charged to cover the next 6 months' anticipated spend
Achieve an average sales period of 4.5 months for new shared ownership properties

Asset Management

o
o

Achieve an Energy Performance Certificate minimum rating of Band D for all homes
Raise Êl million each year from the disposal of underperforming assets

Resident Services

o
o
o
¡

Achieve upper quartile performance for resident satisfaction with overall service provided.
Reduce management costs per rented unit each year during the four year period of the minus
1% rent reductions

Reduce the basic fee for the standard management service to our shared owners and
leaseholders and introduce charges for any additional services requested or required

lncrease interaction with general needs residents through the 'MyHightown' portal by
year

15o/o a

Gare and Supported Housing

¡
¡
o
o
o
o

Deliver a 5% annual surplus on our Care & Supported Housing (C&SH) activities each year
Maintain C&SH activities at between 30% and 50% of Hightown's overall turnover
Reduce use of agency staff by 2Oo/o ayear
Devise and deliver a system that measures outturns for service users
Extend services to older people
Develop a large care home to replace small care homes

Corporate

o
o
.
o
.

Maintain a G1lV1 rating from HCA

With regard to the cost

v

performance matrix, position all Hightown Key Performance
lndicators in either the low cosVhigh quality quartile or in the high performance or low cost
portions of the matrix
lmprove staff satisfaction levels
Commission each year an external audit to confirm that appropriate lT security practices and
disaster recovery provisions are in place
Purchase a site for a retirement village
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Our Business Model
Hightown Housing Association Limited ('the Association" / "Hightown") is a charitable housing
association governed by a voluntary Board providing benefit to the community. The Association
operates mainly in Hertfordshire, Bedfordshire and Buckinghamshire. The Association's principal
activities are the development and management of social and affordable housing, supported housing
and the provision of care services.
Hightown is a single legal entity

-

there are no subsidiary companies.

General Needs
Most of Hightown's properties are let on social or affordable rents at sub-market rents. The properties
range from 1 bedroomed flats to 4 bedroomed houses. Hightown also provides shared ownership
properties, manages leasehold properties including some retirement leasehold estates, and runs a
social lettings agency for homeless families.
Care and Supported Housing

Hightown provides housing and/or support to people who are vulnerable, through its Care and

Supported housing department. The support ranges from a few hours a week, to 24 hour services
depending on the-needs of the service user. Client groups include people with learning disabilities,
people with mental health problems, homeless people, young people, women fleeing domestic
violence, mother and babies, and refugees. ln most cases, Hightown provides the housing and the
support services. But, in some cases Hightown owns the property and another organisation provides
the support or another organisation owns the property but Hightown provides the support.

Gharitable Giving
Alongside Hightown's day{o-day operations, our staff give their time and money to support other
charities. At Hightown's annual Staff Conference large numbers of staff members give up their time to
volunteer at several local charities across the region.
ln 2015, Hightown's staff nominated the Collett School in Hemel Hempstead as the association's main
charity. The school supports children with complex learning disabilities and its aims run parallel with
Hightown's values. Through a range of fundraising events, such as bake sales and firewalks,
Hightown's staff have raised Ê18,867 from 2015 to 2018Hightown's donations have been used to
build much needed classrooms and fund resources for the school.

Our Performance
Finances
Hightown has grown its turnover every year for the last 5 years despite the 1% property rent reduction
imposed by the government in 2016. The results for this year again show the strong financial

performance by Hightown, with continued growth in turnover and an increase in the housing stock
reflecting the strong pipeline of developing new homes.

The accompanying charts and tables show how Hightown's annual turnover has risen over recent
years. Surpluses have also risen and are re-invested in building new affordable homes.
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FinancialSummary

2018

2017

2016

€'000

Ê'000

Ê'000

Turnover

69,415

24,532

62,785
22,466

50,697

Operating Surplus
lnterest payable

8,108

6,530

7,100

Total Comprehensive lncome
Gross Margin %
Net Margin %
lnterest cover (times)

18,314

15,947

14,285

35o/o

36%

39Yo

26%

?5%
4.2

2ïo/o

560,280

489,s87

536,712

479,737

297,099
98,824

261,294

3 Year

3.7

624,228
613,142
354,314
117,138

Housing Properties at cost
Net Assets less short term liabilities

Total Debt
Total Reserves

19,844

3.4

82,877

The result for the last three years show continued growth in turnover as a result of the investment in
new homes from the development pipeline, even after the rent reductions o'Í 1o/o imposed by the
government.

Annual Turnover
80000
60000

o
o
Iqt

40000
20000
0

20L4 2015 20L6 20L7

2018

The operating surplus has continued to rise, from Ê16.65m in 2017 to î24.53m in 2018. The net
surplus has also increased showing increases in efficiency and value for money. The net surplus in
reinvested in the delivery of new housing units. The net margins and interest cover metrics haVe
remained strong indicating the financial resilience of Hightown.

f '000

Annual Surplus

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

201.4 20rs 2016 20]-7

20t8

Page 6

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Board Report
For the year ended 31 ft/arch 2018

Hightown is currently spending around f90m gross a year on developing new homes financed by
operational surpluses, new borrowing, shared ownership sales and capital grant. Around €50m of new
borrowing is required to fund the development programme each year. Recent borrowing has been
arranged with Yorkshire Building Society, Danske Bank, M&G lnvestments and Retail Charity Bond
plc.

Development Programme
The financial year 2017118 was a record year in Hightown's development programme. Hightown
delivered 650 new properties including 9 commercial shops. This output significantly exceeded
Hightown's 350 new homes target and represents the highest volume of homes Hightown has ever
delivered in any one year. With 265 new units delivered in 2016117, Hightown has delivered over 900
new homes in the last two years.
Analysis of the 2017l18 development programme is as below.

-

Hightown predominantly built properties at Affordable Rent and for Shared Ownership in
25 homes (4%) were developed for social rent which reflects the low level of Social
Housing Grant available to subsidise this tenure.

Tenures

2017118. Only

Tenure

Apr-Jun

Jul-Sep

2017

2017

-

Oct
Dec
2017

Total

130

88

330

Affordable Rent
Shared Ownership
Intermediate Rent
SocialRent
Supported Housing
Gommercial Shops
Other

104

56
16
4

197

23
3

I
4

Commercial
Properties

-

Jan
Mar
2018
102

Total

o/o

2017118
650
417

64o/o

107

160/o

81

12o/o

25

4o/o

10

2o/o

5

I

1o/o

1

1

26

60
42

77
14
10

Tenure - 2017118

1o/o

Shared
Ownership
160/o

lntermediate
Rent
13%

Social Rent
4o/o

Affordable
Rent
64o/o

Page 7

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Boand Report
For the

ended 31 lMarch 2018

Local authorities - Hightown built 650 properties in 11 local authority areas as follows:

LocalAuthority

Dec
2017

Jul-Sep
2017

r30

88

330

44
40

5

22

Total
Dacorum BC
Aylesbury Vale DC
St Albans Gity & District
Chiltern DC
East Herts DC
Central Beds
Three Rivers DC
Watford BC
South Bucks DC
Luton
Milton Keynes

Oct

-

Apr-Jun
2017

Jan

- Mar

2017118

153

10
30

212
136

33o/o

44

72

11o/o

38

67

10o/o

20

5B

9o/o

4

35

5o/o

21

3%

15
12

2o/o

4

11

2%

11

11

2o/o

29
20

18

I

16

7
13

B

15
12
7

o/o

2018
102

69

3

Total

Local Authority - 2017

650

21o/o

2o/o

118

Central Beds
5o/o

Dacorum
33o/o

EastHerts
9o/o

Chiltern
10%
Aylesbury
Vale

St Albans

21o/o

11o/o

Procurement Source - Nearly two thirds of Hightown's programme came from Housebuilders under
the s.106 planning requirements to provide affordable housing:

Summary by
Procurement Source

-

Apr-

Jul-

Jun
2017

sep
2017

Oct
Dec
2017

Total

r30

88

Housebuilder S.106
Own Land- Led
Package deals
Off the shelf purchase

130

-

Total

Jan
Mar

20171'18

330

2018
102

650

62

r33

82

407

630/o

12

190
7

202

31o/o

20

27
14

4o/o

14

%

2o/o
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Procurement Type - 2017I18

Land-Led
31o/o

OffThe
s1 06

Shelf

630/o

2o/o

Package

As a registered provider of social and affordable housing, Hightown is regulated by the Regulator of
Social Housing. This regulation takes the form of regulator monitoring and grading of governance and
financial viabilities on a periodic basis. The challenges faced by the Association include regulated
rents where growth is set by government along with changes to welfare reform through Universal
Credit. As part of the wider context government housing policy can have a direct impact on how the
Association operates in housing management, tenancy and the development of new homes. Some
developments are part funded by social housing grant from Homes England. The grant regime is
dependent upon government policy and available funding.
Hightown's policy is to maximise the numbers of new affordable homes it can provide to meet housing
need while maintaining strong finances and managing associated risk. The Association delivered 640
new affordable homes in20'l7l1B and expects to deliver another 400 new homes in 2018i19 and for
each of the three years thereafter.

The large majority of new homes will be for affordable rent at rents which are sub-market at 80% of
market rents. There will also be some properties for intermediate rent (also 80% of market rents) and
some for shared ownership (around 20o/o of the programme). Hightown does not build for open market
sale or for market rent.
Around 35o/o of the new homes will be on sites purchased by Hightown for affordable housing and
around 65% of new homes will be the affordable housing element on sites developed by private
housebuilders.

Heart of Maylands, Hemel Hempstead
Hightown is committed to transforming the local area and this year completed its flagship 'Heart of
Maylands' development. lncluding 130 new homes, exclusively for sub-market rents, the Heart of
Maylands marked a new venture for Hightown. As well as affordable housing, the development
provides a new community hub and includes 10 shops, a church with community centre and a public
square.

6,000 homes
ln March 2018, Hightown celebrated a significant milestone with the completion of its 6,000th home at
The Grange in Chalfont St Peter, Bucks. The property was let to care worker Justine who had
become homeless after separating from her husband. After some time sofa surfing with friends and
staying in temporary accommodation, she was delighted to move into her own home.
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For Hightown, this achievement comes just two years after celebrating the development of its 5,000th
property and demonstrates the strength of the development programme and Hightown's commitment
to "solving the housing crisis".

Asset Management
Sound business planning along with developing new approaches to managing our stock is a core
element of providing decent affordable homes. We ensure our stock is kept in good condition by
managing the short and long term maintenance requirements of these assets. As a business
Hightown works to the principles of;

a.
b.
c.

Ensuring a minimum quality standard is achieved across all properties owned and managed by
Hightown
Understanding the performance and sustainability of individual properties across the portfolio and
to ensure the use of property assets is maximised by considering disposal of poor quality, low
demand, expensive to maintain or poorly located housing and reinvesting into new development
opportunities.
Having homes that continually meet all Health and Safety requirements.

Hightown understands that the return on assets is not just the financial return generated but also social
and environmental impacts and the ability to deliver business objectives. lts largest asset is its stock of
properties, which in 2017118 passed over 6,000 units. To manage and utilise our stock effectively, we
need to understand its performance and sustainability.

Hightown has a good asset register and has a solid knowledge of the stock and its condition. This
detailed knowledge allows for a better understanding of the contribution made by each property, its

energy efficiency and the return on the investment made. To understand how each property

contributes we carry out an annual Net Present Value (NPV) review of our rented properties looking at
the future projected rental income of the properties against the future projected expenditure for these
properties over the next 30 years.

We incorporate the expected responsive repair, planned'repair and major works costs for the property
over the next 30 years together with the costs of managing the property and any anticipated void
losses. This information is then compared to the income we expect to receive over the same period.
The NPV calculation measures the Net Present Value of future net income streams and identifies
whether any homes do not cbver future costs from future rents.

We use the results to inform business decisions on retention and investment for current use,
conversion, change of tenure or disposal. The following chart shows some of the information that
helps take these decisions.
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The chart above shows the NPV across all rented stock. The average value across the next 30 years
is f82,000 per unit. This is an average increase of Ê2,000 per unit compared to the end of March
2017. fhe detail behind these results allows analysis of the information and splits properties into
different asset groups which identify any that may be underperforming or are of particular concern.
These results also help identify where Hightown is achieving the best value for money.
There are 4 units that show negative returns across the next 30 years and further analysis has shown
that these are all shared ownership units acquired as part of a government initiative where Hightown
remains responsible for certain repairs and major works.

Gorporate
ln May 2016, the Regulator published a regulatory judgement for Hightown following an in-depth
assessment which concluded that both the governance and viability standards were met. The
Regulator graded Hightown "G1" for governance, meaning that it meets the Regulator's governance
requirements, and "V1", meaning that Hightown meets the Regulator's financial viability requirements
and has the financial capacity to deal with a wide range of adverse scenarios. This rating was
reaffirmed by the Regulator in October 2017.
Social Landlord Operations
Hightown manages 3,424 homes for social/affordable rent let to families, couples and single people
nominated by the local authority from the housing register. Satisfaction levels are in the upper middle
quartile and management costs are low compared with Hightown's peers. Hightown maintains good
levels of performance on collecting rent and letting properties.
Rents
Around 57% of Hightown's properties are let at 'social rents' (a Government imposed formula rent
which takes into account property values but also local earnings) which equate to a rent of around
60% of market rents. Many of these properties were built with social housing grant funding. lt is
Hightown's policy to re-let these properties at social rents when they become vacant.
However, most new properties since 2012 have been let at'affordable rents'which equate to 80% of
market rents. The Government approved these higher rents for new developments when social
housing grants were reduced in 2011.
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Wherever sufficient capital subsidy (grant) is available, Hightown will develop new homes at social
rents.

Hightown Lettings
To help to meet the increasing demand for temporary housing, Hightown has established 'Hightown
Lettings', a service that makes private market properties available to local authorities to use to house
homeless families. The service has grown significantly over the past year and now includes 54
properties.

Recently the service helped single mother Jodie, who faced eviction after her previous landlord put
her rent up to a level she could not afford. Hightown Lettings was able to provide temporary
accommodation for her in Hemel Hempstead and now she has a permanent home in Watford.
Care and Supported Housing
Around 44o/o of Hightown's income comes from the provision of care and supported housing. Care
and supported housing operations provide support services to vulnerable and disabled people and
are central to Hightown's strategic and charitable goals.

ln recent years, cuts and freezes to local government social care budgets and NHS funding
commissioners have made it difficult to keep these schemes viable against a backdrop of rising
costs, particularly wage inflation. These problems have been exacerbated by national minimum wage
rulings including the ruling on'sleep ins'.
Hightown's policy is to expect revenue grant income from social care and health commissioners to at
least meet Hightown's C&SH support costs while income from Hightown's supported housing rents
should cover property depreciation, repairs and interest.
New Support Services
As a result of Hightown's strong relationships with local authority partners, Hightown has opened
several new specialist care and supported housing services this year. These include:
a Safe Haven for victims of domestic violence in Hemel Hempstead
a street drinker outreach service in St Albans
a Stage 1 move-on service as part of a pilot project aiming to help adults with a mental health
diagnosis who are awaiting discharge from hospital
a hostel providing temporary accommodation for homeless people awaiting assessment by
St Albans District Council
a new young people's service in Hemel Hempstead for asylum seekers.

.
o
.
o
.

Person-Centred Support
Hightown's care and supported housing services all provide high quality personalised support to help
each individual service user to live a full and meaningful life. This year, two of Hightown's learning
disability services in High Wycombe were jointly shortlisted for an award for their dedication to
promoting dignity and best practice. We are pleased to announce that we won. Their achievements
include supporting service user Francis to cope with his learning disabilities and with the onset of
dementia meaning that he could remain in his home.
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Value for Money
Hightown's Approach To Value for Money (VfM)
Hightown is

a strong performer on Value for Money. lt continues to deliver strong

operational
programme
of
performance and to invest the annual surplus into delivering a substantial development
new units for its size.
Hightown has always demonstrated a strong approach to Value for Money. lt sees it as a continuous
process which is embedded into Hightown's culture and operations.
Hightown's approach to value for money is driven by the main principles below.

o
¡

o
.
o
.
o
.
.
o
.

Embed a culture of achieving VfM throughout Hightown, including Board members, staff and
involved residents;

A commitment and understanding to constantly challenge the status quo and to seek new
ways to deliver services through the efficient deployment of lT;
lnvolve residents in reviewing VfM using the resident panel;
lmprove procurement methods and deliver cost savings on contract renewals;
Understand the financial and social return on our assets and use this to make decisions;

Maximise Hightown's financial capacity to deliver our strategic aims and objectives and
deliver a strong development programme;
Use the golden thread of performance management to ensure that everything we do helps to
achieve our purpose and strategic objectives;
Make use of external validation and report on our performance to stakeholders including
residents, Regulator of Social Housing, central government, the local authorities we work with
and other partners;
Develop new homes efficiently and economically that meet the needs of those who live in the
areas in which we operate;
Understand how we are performing by benchmarking Hightown over time and against others;
lmprove customer service and customer satisfaction.

How we have done

ln last year's Value for Money Self-Assessment, Hightown re-affirmed its commitment to delivering
value of money and identified the following areas for improvement. Performance against those targets
is also shown:

o
.
o
r

Hightown aims

to retain its HouseMark performance in the low cost

/

good performance

quadrant. As'detailed elsewhere in the report, this has been achieved.
Hightown will deliver a large net financial surplus and invest that surplus into the delivery of
new homes. This has been achieved. ln the year, Hightown delivered a surplus of Ê16.7m
and a record number of 650 new units.
Hightown will manage these extra homes with marginal increases in costs, achieving a lower
operating cost per unit. As detailed elsewhere in the report, this has been achieved.
Hightown will increase the use of the digital service delivery and will increase thê interaction
with tenants through the MyHightown Portal by at least 15%. This has been achieved with the
increase in usage rising 46% in year with 2,127 residents now using the portal.

Forthe past 12 years, Hightown has maintained an Efficiency Log, completed by staff and managers,
to record the Value for Money savings made during the everyday course of business and to embed
Value for Money. ln 2017118 there were 20 entries into the log from across the breadth of the
business from minor changes in daily processes to savings achieved through procurement.
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Performance Against The Regulator's Value for Money Metrics
ln April 2018 the Regulator of Social Housing published a Value for Money Standard setting out the
approach to Value for Money expected from Registered Providers. ln addition a Value for Money
Code of Practice was published to amplify the requirements of the standard and explaining and
elaborating on the content.

The Regulator of Social Housing has published seven metrics which it will use to measure the three
E's of Value for Money - Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness, on a comparative basis across the
sector.

Hightown's performance against the Regulator's metrics in the financial year 2017118 and compared
with 2016/17 are as follows:

VfM Cost Chain

Value for Money Metric

I
2a

2b
3
4

5
6a

6b
7

March
2018

March

Efficiency
Effectiveness

28.2o/o

20.7o/o

11.5o/o

5.4o/o

Effectiveness

Oo/o

Oo/o

53.2o/o

50.4o/o

258.4o/o

271.9o/o

Measure
Reinvestment %
New Supply Delivered
Social Housing Units %
New Supply Delivered
Non-social Housing Units %
Gearing %
(EBITDA MRI) lnterest Cover %
Earnings Before lnterest, Tax,
Depreciation, Amortisation, Major Repairs
lncluded
Headline Social Housing Cost Per
Operating Margin % - Social Housing
Lettings
Operating Margin % - Overall
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

Unit
%

Efficiency
Efficiency

Economy

Ê6,898

2017

Ê7,019

Efficiency

33.5o/o

34.10Â

Efficiency
Efficiency

31.7o/o

31.0o/o

4.O%

4.2o/o

This is the first year end that these performance metrics have been produced. No comparators are yet
available of this metric across the sector.
Metric I - Reinvestment %
This metric looks at the reinvestment of financial resources into housing stock, showing the proportion
of the year end housing assets invested in the year. lt is a measure of effectiveness. ln 2017118,
Hightown invested Ê63.8m and delivered a record level of new units. The metric reinvestment score of
28.2o/o builds on the 20.7o/o achieved in 2O16117 which we believe is well above the Sector average.
This clearly demonstrates Hightown's continued commitment to provide new homes to people in
housing need in accordance with its primary charitable purposes.
Metric 2 - New Supplv Delivered
This supply metric measures the proportion of properties at year end that were created during the
year. lt is a measure of effectiveness. There are two measures: the proportion of new social housing
delivered and the proportion of non-social housing delivered in the year.

The percentage of new supply of social housing delivered in 2017/18 was 11.5o/o and 5.4% in the
previous year. This reflects the substantial development programme in recent years with 602 units in
2017l18 and 265 units deliveredin2016117.
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Hightown did not deliver any Non-Social Housing units in the year. This reflects Hightown's Strategic

Plan, demonstrating that it remains focussed on the delivery of social housing in keeping with its
charitable objectives.
Metric 3

-

Gearinq

This metric measures the amount of debt as a proportion of the gross cost of housing assets at the
year end. lt is a measure of efficiency. lt measures the proportion of assets funded by borrowing. With
most new homes now being built for affordable rent without government grant, new homes require
more borrowing per unit than in the past, and so over time, the average level of gearing will rise.
However, as Hightown makes a significant surplus, it is able to reinvest the surplus into the provision
of new housing so reducing the amount of new borrowing required and can therefore reduce the
overall rise in gearing. There is still significant headroom for further borrowing against Hightown's
internal limit of 60% and against covenants within bank loan agreements.

Metric4-EBITDAMRI
The metric measures lnterest Cover using an adjusted measurement of earnings taking account of
non-cash entries - Earnings before lnterest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation, Major Repairs
lncluded (EBITDA MRI). This is a measure of efficiency. The reduction trom 271.9% in 2O17 lo
258.4Yo in 2018 is a marginaldrop and in part reflects the increased investment in major repairs in the
year ãnd a slight increase in average interest arising from fixing debt at higher rates than the previous
average rate.
Metric 5

-

Headline social housinq cost per unit

The headline social housing cost per unit at Ê6,898 is likely to be high in comparison to other
Registered Providers. This reflects the fact that Hightown delivers a substantial amount of Care &
Supported Housing (2018 t26.4m) which distorts the headline costs on a per unit basis. This high
overall cost has been apparent in past data analysis from the HCA Global Accounts Comparison, their
operating costs analysis and the PlaceShapers group benchmarking. However, benchmarking of our
housing management costs within the HouseMark benchmarking club shows that Hightown had the
lowest management cost per unit in its peer group in 2016117.

The reduction in unit cost is in part due to the growth in unit numbers showing that Hightown has been
able to contain the growth in management costs and achieve greater efficiency on a per unit basis.
The unit cost of management fell from Ê7,019 in 2017 to Ê6,898 in 2018.
Metric 6 - Operatinq marqin
This metric measures the proportion of turnover that is retained after deduction of operating costs. lt is
a measure of operational efficiency. There are two measures: a) Social Housing Lettings margin and
b) an Association margin.

The first measure a) Operating margin on social lettings has shown a slight reduction from 34.1% in
2017 to 33.5% in 2018. This is a reflection of the additional depreciation charges on the new

development prograrnme net of other delivery efficiencies. Hightown demonstrates strong
performance on value for money in the delivery of management of social lettings activity. However,

the Care & Supported Housing activity operates on a very low margin in a very difficult commissioning
environment.

The second measure b) Operating Margin
2018 compared to 31 .0%in2017.
Metric 7

-

%o

- Overalt has remained almost unchanged at

31.7o/o in

Return on Caoital Emploved (ROCE)

This metric measures the return on capital assets in use by the Association. lt is an efficiency
measure on the income generated from the assets. There has been a small decrease from 4.2o/o in
2017 to 4.0% in 2018. ln part this reflects the continued impact of falling income from existing
properties subject to the -1o/o rent reduction imposed by the government and is also affected by the
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substantial increase in the cost of housing assets from new units delivered from Ê560m in 2017 to
1624m in 2018, with rental income only on a part year. The return on capital employed of 4.0%
compares with the average cost of borrowing in the year of 3.04o/o.

HouseMark and other benchmarking performance
Hightown has, for the last I years, benchmarked its housing management costs and performance
against its peers through the independent HouseMark benchmarking service. The benchmarking
results for 2016117 clearly shows that Hightown continues to be a low cost, good performing housing
association, delivering services in a very economic, efficient and effective way. The last.two years
performance against the peer group is as follows:
2015116

2016117

Goorl perforrnance

Good performance

HLgh

Hrgh cost

ö
E

fi

o

LJ

Poor perforrnance

Loü,ost

o

Poor ¡xrformance

Ltost

O
Pcrlormoce

Ferloffiance
Key:

l.

cûst

Responsive Repairs; 2 Rent arrears & collection; 3 Anti-social behaviour; 4 Major works
maintenance; 5 Lettings; 6 Tenancy management; 7 Resident involvement; Estate serwbes.

I

&

cyclical

The comparison shows that Hightown continues to deliver good performance at low cost. The
activities have remained in the same Value for Money quadrants with most key areas in the good
performance, low cost quadrant. There were strong cost reductions in lettings costs and performance
reductions in the major repairs activities.
HouseMark Efficiencv Sum marv
Hightown's HouseMark performance summary in its peer group shows very good performance with
upper quartile and 2nd quartile performances. The key headlines are:

Page 16

Hightown Housing Association Limited
ffionrcl fìeport
For the year enderl il'ì iMarch 2CI18

Hightown Housi ng Association

Li

mited

ô

managemerìt

1290.23

t

key headlines

2oL6| 2oL7

down
grouD

responsrve

void

*

works r-664.37

î:e
:tr

l¡¡;olhoi ti

rD

Y

LOO.65%

v

Sector Scorecard
During 2017118 Hightown also participated in the HouseMark pilot of a Sector Scorecard. This was
developed before publication of the Regulator's Metrics, measuring l5 performance areas.
Hightown's 2016117 metrics outperformed the peer group of traditional associations in the south-east
and eastern region, and the Sector median, in most areas as below:
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PlaceShapers

Hightown has again used data analysis provided by the PlaceShapers group of associations. This
data has shown Hightown to be a strong performer in the peer group and the sector except for the
area of gearing and debt per unit where Hightown's recent growth with low levels of grant results in a
higher borrowing requirement than in the past, and for headline cost per unit where Hightown's
substantial care & supported housing function distorts the comparison.
GlobalAccounts
The Regulator of Social Housing publishes annual data from the accounts of Registered Providers.
Hightown uses this data analysis to compare its performance and to seek to understand reasons for
any apparent under performance.
Value for Monev in 2018/19
Hightown will continue to deliver Value for Money in its provision of services. lt will continue to meet
the demand for new homes for people on low incomes who are unable to rent or buy a home on the
open market, using its fínancial capacity to deliver around 400 new homes through the investment of
a strong operating surplus.
ln addition Hightown will:

r
.
.
.
o
.
o
.

Continue to deliver strong operational metrics on the Regulator of Social Housings metrics,
aside from debt per unit and gearing where we will remain as data outliers.
lmprove the HouseMark measured cost per unit for housing management.

Employ our own fixed wire operatives to improve access to carry out this work and to make
savings on the costs of employing contractors.

Explore whether introducing direct labour to carry out voids works might lead to savings in
costs incurred on readying vacant properties for re-letting.
lncrease the range of services and information offered to our residents through the residents'
portal2417.
Simplifying the way residents make on-line payments.
Appoint a second Financial lnclusion Officer to assist tenants who are in debt to Hightown

and struggle with their finances, to help maximise their income,and their ability to pay
Hightown what is owed and to help retain tenancies.

lntroduce new systems for payment of expenses internally, and continue to roll out new
workflow process and dashboards to improve the information for employee and managers.

Kev contracts to be procured durinq 2018/19

Over the coming year our Procurement Team, who are tasked with obtaining value for money from
Hightown's key contracts, will be procuring, for example, the following: multi-functional devices for
managed print, water hygiene services and the utilities contracts (communal gas & electricity). These
will be tendered or procured through framework agreements as appropriate.

Areas of underperformance
As has been demonstrated earlier in this report, Hightown's overall performance on Value of Money is

very good. However that there some areas where Hightown will seek to deliver

continued

improvement against its peers and year on year. There are also some areas where Hightown is likely
to remain an outlier compared to its peers around debt and gearing as Hightown continues to grow.
We will continue to improve our efficiency on management costs as we grow and expect our cost per
unit to remain upper quartile performance. We will continue to deliver a strong development
programme of new affordable homes as this meets the Association's primary purpose and recognise
that this will mean that the overall average debt per unit and gearing will rise.
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Risks and Uncertainties
The housing association sector has proved resilient to changing economic conditions and currently
seems to have the support of the Government, which is keen to see housing associations providing
new homes. Rental income reductions and benefit cap risks have been mitigated by recent
Government an nou ncements.

As a Registered Provider of social housing, Hightown is exposed to many similar risks to other
Registered Providers around the potential impacts of rent controls and welfare benefit reforms, from
inflation, and interest rate risks.
Hightown's own specific risks arise due to it being a very active developer of housing. lt is therefore
exposed to risks around the funding of the development programme, delivery of the schemes on-site,
market impact on sales of shared ownership properties, and the treasury risks associated with
borrowings.

Additionally, Hightown has a significant Care and Supported Housing (C&SH) activity which expose it
to different risks than many general needs based housing associations. Operational risks relate to
managing the C&SH contracts, managing C&SH staff issues including recruitment, retention and
remuneration, and managing health and safety for service users and staff.
The key risks for Hightown are:
Description and risk mitigation

Key Risks

Availability of
Funding

Hightown has a large development programme for its size with growth rates
above the sector average. The availability of future funding is therefore a key risk
for Hightown to meet its Strategic Objectives for growth in the Business Plan.
During 2017t18 Hightown took a further Ê31.5m loan from Retail Charity Bonds
plc being the proceeds of their bond issue. At 31 March 2018 Hightown held
Ê82m of undrawn committed loan facilities and Ê21.9m in cash. Along with the
expected future revenue surplus and sale of 1't tranche of shared ownership
properties, this will provide sufficient funding of all committed development
schemes.

Hightown closely monitors its forward development programme against available
financing facilities and seeks at all times to maintain sufficient cash and undrawn
facilities to cover at least 12 months'anticipated foruvard expenditure after
allowing for revenue cash surpluses, grants and expected sales income.
lnterest Rate
Exposure

Hightown manages its exposure to interest rate risk through its treasury
management policy and from close monitoring of the financial markets.
The policy requires that at least 40% of debt should be at fixed rates of interest.
The proportion of fixed rate debt at 31 March 2018 was 58.7% (2016: 43.5%).
Hightown has no free standing derivatives and no exposure to margin calls on
such instruments.

C&SH Contracts
become unviable

Continued austerity cuts to commissioners' bu dgets and changes to interpretation

of employment legislation which impacts wage costs, puts pressure on the
continued viability of some Care & Supported Housing Contracts. Where possible
Hightown will seek to work with commissioners to remodel the service but where
it is not possible, Hightown has little alternative than to cease to deliver the
service.
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lmpact of Rent
Reductions

The Board believes that the reduction in management costs per unit resulting
from the growth in the number of homes under management should enable
Hightown to defray the further impact of the Government's 1% rent reductions.
From April 2020 the level of social rent increases will return to the previous basis
of CPI+1% and will allow Hightown to continue to invest in the provision of new
housing.

Health & Safety

Welfare Reform
Changes

Staff Retention

Major lT failure

Data Protection

Sales Risk

Hightown takes its responsibility for health & safety very seriously. The Board
regularly reviews the health and safety performance through the Operations
Committee and approves the health and safety policy. Assurance is provided by
independent external advisors, internal audits and compliance testing.
The roll out of Universal Credit and direct payment, allied with the likely further
significant cuts in the Government's welfare budget, are almost certain to
adversely affect arrears performance and bad debt levels, at least in the short
term. Hightown offer a range of welfare and benefits information and have
invested in extra staff including two Financial lnclusion Officers to assist tenants
in obtaining benefit entitlement, thus reducing arrears and helping to retain
tenancies. Hightown has been communicating with tenants since its introduction
on the chanoes and is well olaced to manaoe the imoact.
The Care & Supported Housing department continues to have a high turnover of
staff and a reliance on casual bank workers and agency staff. Hightown is
targeting a reduction in staff turnover and use of agency staff.
Hightown has upgraded and improved its lT security systems and data back up to
try to prevent and to contain any cyber-attacks. This is a fast moving area and
Hightown continues to review its lT Security. Hightown carries out an external
annual audit of lT systems.
The General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force in May 2018.
Any non-compliance could lead to an adverse impact upon individuals or groups
of tenants and residents. Hightown has plans to achieve compliance including
training to ensure that the Association is compliant with GDPR by putting into
place necessary policies and procedures.
Hightown's exposure to open market property sales is limited to the exposure
from the new shared ownership unit sales. Uncertainty surrounding the UK
economy caused by the UK's exit from the EU may adversely impact property
prices. The Board reviews the business plan and associated stress testing to
ascertain assurance of the association's financial viability.

Hightown has a Risk Management and Business Assurance Framework under which risks are
identified, assessed and monitored. The higher scoring risks form the High Risk Register which is
scrutinised by the Risk & Audit Committee each meeting and reviewed quarterly by the Board. Other
lower risks are reviewed by the Executive regularly. A Business Assurance framework sits alongside
the risk registers and evidences the lines of assurance obtained for each risk and the level of external,
independent review applied to key processes.
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Employees
During 2017118 Hightown employed 668 (2017:674) full time equivalent employees, excluding "bank"

staff who cover temporary vacancies and staff leave, most of whom are engaged in providing front
line housing and support services to our residents. lncluding casual bank staff, the Association now
employs over 1,100 people. The Association continues to invest in the training of its employees.
Hightown continues to embed the 'Five Ways to Wellbeing' model into the workplace. The aim is to
ensure that staff are encouraged to seek the support necessary to take care of their own physical and

mental wellbeing and so enable them to provide high quality, professional services to our service
users and residents.

The Five Ways to Wellbeing are to:
Give;

Take Notice;
Connect;
Keep Learning;
Be Active.

As part of Hightown's commitment to promoting the Five Wayç of Wellbeing amongst our staff and in
our Care & Supported Housing activities, Hightown has worked to raise awareness of key topics
among staff, such as stress and mental health. During the year, Hightown also hosted several staff
events to promote fitness, build relationships between staff members and encourage further learning.
Hightown engages with its staff about the Association's objectives, progress and activities through
regular office and departmental meetings; through newsletters and written communications; and
through staff briefings and 'Meet the Chief Executive' events. This year Hightown launched a new
intranet, designed following feedback from staff focus groups. The aim is to provide a centralised and
accessible repository of information for all staff, including those in the Care & Supported Housing
schemes, as well as an internal communications platform that encourages collaborative working.

A Staff Forum of elected staff representatives meets quarterly to discuss issues relevant to staff and
give feedback to management. Hightown also has an internal communications platform "Yammer".
Hightown is committed to equality and diversity for all its employees.

Governance
Hightown is managed by a voluntary Board of seven elected members and two co-opted members
with a range of skills and experience relevant to the Association's operational activities and major
risks. All Board members are shareholders. The Board is supported by four Committees for
Development, Risk & Audit, Operations and Nominations & Remuneration.
A Governance Effectiveness review was conducted by external consultants in late 2016. lt concluded
that overall Board oversight was effective and proportionate. Some amendments to the Committee
structure and Board support arrangements were made as a result of the review. The Board carries out
an effectiveness review each year.

Hightown has the top assessment rating for Governance (G1) and Viability (V1) from the
Government-appointed regulator, The Regulator of Social Housing.
Hightown complies with all relevant legislation
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Gompliance with Governance and Financial Viability Standard
Hightown has carried out an assessment against the requirements of the Regulator of Social
Housing's Governance and Financial Viability Standards. The Association complies with all the
requirements of the Standard.

National Housing Federation Gode of Governance
Hightown complies with the principal recommendations of the National Housing Federation (NHF)
Code of Governance (Promoting board excellence for housing assoclafions 2015).

NHF Code of Conduct
The Association has policies and procedures to demonstrate compliance with the NHF code of
conduct 2012.
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Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement
The following statement gives a concise overview of the steps Hightown has taken to ensure that
slavery and trafficking is not part of its business practices, or those of its contractors and suppliers.
This statement relates to actions and activities during the financial year 1 April 2017 to 3l March
2018.
Hiqhtown's Statement
Hightown expects its suppliers to value people, and by doing so not to use slave labour or engage in
human trafficking. Suppliers must comply fully with all the applicable legislation including, but not
limited to that relating to: slavery, human trafficking, forced labour, immigration, health and safety, and
the environment.

Hightown requires all new suppliers to confirm by submitting their tender or by a short statement that
they are not in breach of the Act.

Existing repairs contractors have been asked to confirm that they are not in breach of the Act. Our
tender documentation includes a provision for the mandatory exclusion of any bidder convicted of an
offence under sections 1, 2 or 4 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015.
Where we enter into new contracts we seek to impose provisions for termination in the event of a
modern slavery or human trafficking compliance breach by the supplier.
Compliance

Hightown may instruct its agents to conduct audits of key suppliers where there are suspicions that
there may be non-compliance with the above legislation. Should a breach be identified, Hightown may
provide the supplier with an opportunity to rectify the problem and implement a corrective action plan
but reserves the right to remove the supplier from its supply chain.
Traininq

Hightown's internal processes for Recruitment and Procurement address compliance with The
Modern Slavery Act 2015. Recruitment staff receive appropriate training to enable them to conduct
checks on documents such as passports and other forms of identification, to avoid being party to
trafficking. All staff have access to E Learning covering Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking. Staff can
also visit the Modern Slavery website www.modernslavery.co.uk to gain further information about the
types of slavery, signs to spot, online or telephone reporting and referral processes for victims.
Relevant policies

Hightown operates the following policies that describe its approach to the identification of modern
slavery risks and steps to be taken to prevent slavery and human trafficking in its business practices,
or those of our contractors and suppliers:
a

a

a

-

Hightown encourages all of its workers to report any concerns
relating to Hightown or its supply chains and has processes in place to allow this.
Procurement code of conduct - Hightown is committed to ensuring that its suppliers adhere
to the highest standards of ethics. Suppliers are required to demonstrate that they provide
safe working conditions where necessary, treat workers with dignity and respect, and act
ethically and within the law in their use of labour.

Whistleblowing Policy

Recruitment policy

-

Hightown uses only specified, reputable employment agencies to
source labour and always verifies the practices of any new agency it is using before accepting
workers from that agency.

Hightown's Whistleblowing policy is designed to make it easy for workers to make disclosures, without
fear of discrim ination.
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Hightown works closely with other agencies and will report any suspected incidences of slavery or
trafficking to the relevant authorities.
Board approval

This statement has been approved by the Hightown Board. This statement is reviewed annually
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Board Statement On The Effectiveness Of The System Of lnternal Gontrol
For The Period Ending 3l March 2018

The Board of management of Hightown Housing Association Limited is the governing body of the
Association. lt is committed to the highest standards of business ethics and conduct and seeks to
maintain these standards across all operations.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that sound systems of internal control exist throughout the
Association which focus on the significant risks that threaten the Association's ability to meet its
objectives, and to provide reasonable - but not absolute - assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The key means of identifying, evaluating and managing the systems of internal control are

.
.
.
.
.
.

.
.

The corporate governance arrangements.
Written financial regulations and delegated authorities.
Policies and procedures for all key areas of the business which are reviewed periodically to
ensure their continued appropriateness.

An lnternal Audit function using the services of a professional firm of auditors to deliver the
Risk & Audit Committee's risk-based audit plan. All audit reports are reviewed by the
Executive Directors' Group and by the Risk & Audit Committee, which also receives updates
on the implementation of agreed external and internal audit recommendations.
The Health and Safety policy.
A risk management and business assurance process, which enables management to manage
risk so that residual risk, after appropriate mitigation, can be absorbed without serious
permanent damage to the Association. Risk management is considered at each Risk & Audit
Committee meeting, through reviews of individual risk areas, as well as being considered

regularly by the Board.
The Association has a long-term business plan which is stress-tested and approved by the
Board.

The Association and its departments have annual budgets. Throughout the year, the Board
and managers regularly monitored performance against budgets, value for money and other
quality indicators. The key components of reporting are the monthly management accounts,

monthly performance reports from senior managerq and Directors, and the monthly
information pack which includes measurement against key performance indicators. The

.
.
.

.

Association has also developed a series of service performance dashboards.
The regulatory requirements and managers service objectives ensuring that variances are
investigated and acted upon.
An anti-fraud and anti-bribery culture which is supported by policy and procedure for dealing
with suspected fraud, bribery and whistleblowing.
All new housing investment decisions were subject to appraisal and scrutiny. New schemes
with an investment below Ê2 million, which meet the Board agreed approval parameters, may
be agreed by the Chief Executive. All other schemes are scrutinised by the Development
Committee who may approve schemes up to fSm under delegated authority. The Board will
scrutinise and approve all new schemes where investment exceeds Ê5 million, and receives
reports on all approved schemes at each meeting.
The treasury management activity is reported to the Board at each meeting.

The Chief Executive has reviewed the internal control and assurance arrangements and a report has
been made to the Board confirming the effectiveness of the control systems for the year ended 31
March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Risk
& Audit Committee and the Board have expressed their satisfaction with these arrangements.
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Status

No weaknesses were found in internal controls which resulted in material losses, contingencies or
uncertainties that require disclosure in the financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Approval
This Strategic Board Report was approved by order of the Board on 5 July 2018

David Skinner FCCA, FCT
Secretary
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BOARD MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for preparing the report of the Board and the financial statements

in

accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law and social housing legislation require the Board to
prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). The
Board must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of the surplus of the Association for that period.
ln preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:

o
¡
o

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

.

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Association will continue in business.

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended
Practice for registered social housing providers; Housing SORP 2014 have been followed,

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Association's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Association and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008
and the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing 2015. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the report of the Board is prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice for registered social housing providers; Housing SORP 2014.
Financial statements are published on the Association's website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary
from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Association's website is
the responsibility of the Board. The Board's responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the
financial statements contained therein.

Going Concern
After making enquiries the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Association has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements.

AnnualGeneral Meeting
The annual general meeting will be held on 20 September 2018

Auditors
All of the current Board Members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any information needed by the Association's auditors for the purposes of their
audit and to establish that the auditors are aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unware.
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Board Report
For the year ended 31 March 2018

BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to continue. A resolution to re-appoint BDO LLP as
auditors of the Association is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approval
The report of the Board was approved on 5 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

By Order Of The Board

Ghair
5 July 2018
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lndependent Auditor's Report to the Mernbers of l'lightown Housing
Association Limited
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Hightown Housing Association Limited ("the Association"
for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Association statement of comprehensive
income, the Association statement of financial position, the Association statement of changes in
reserves, the cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financiàl reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 1O2 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
ln our opinion, the financial statements:

.
o
o

give a true and fair view of the state of the Association's affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of
the Association's surplus for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Ac|2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) ("lSAs (UK)")
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the lSAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

.
¡

the board members use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
the board members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Association's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The board are responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information including the chairman's statement, board strategic report and the Value for Money SelfAssessment and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
requ'ired to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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^Associatlon Limited
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where we are required by the Cooperative or Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 to
report to you if, in our opinion:

o
.
o
.
.

the information given in the Report of the Board for the fínancial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is not consistent with the financial statements;
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Association; or
a satisfactory system of control has not been maintained over transactions; or

the Association financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records

and

returns; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board

As explained more fully in the board members responsibilities statement set out on page 27, the
board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board members determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the board are responsible for assessing the Association's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the board either intend to liquidate the Association or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

,rrlr"n"" about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.orq.uUauditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Association, as a body, in accordance with the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Association's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Association and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.
BDO LLP

Statutory Auditor
Gatwick
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number

oc305127).
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Statement of Comprehensive lncome
As at 31 March 2018

Note

2018
Ê'000

2017
Ê'000

TURNOVER

3

69,415

62,785

Operating costs

3

(47,4O4)

(43,294\

2,521

2,975

24,532

22,466

278

138

Surplus on sale of properties & other fixed assets

3,6

OPERATING SURPLUS
lnterest receivable and similar income

7

lnterest and financing costs

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

(8,108)

(6,530)

16,702

16,O74

(127)

Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension scheme

27

26

Unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investments

12

1,586

18,314

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

15,947

All activities are continuing.
The notes on pages 35 to 58 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the Board on 5 July 2018.

<\J. òìr-,--\
Bob

- Chair

James Sfee/- Board

Member

David Skinner - Secretary
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lncome and
Expenditure
Reserve
Ê'000

Balance as at

I April 2016

Surplus for the year 2016117

Restricted
Reserve

Revaluation
Reserve

Total

f'000

['000

f'000

167

724

82,877

81,986

16,074
98,060

16,074
167

724

98,951

Actuarial gainsi(losses) relating to
defined benefit pension scheme

(127)

(127)

Other comprehensive income for the
year

(1271

(1271

Transfer of unrealised profit, realised
on disposal of investment

724

Balance at

3l

Balance as at

(7241

March 2017

98,657

167

98,824

I

98,657

167

98,824

April2017

Surplus for the year 2017118

16,702

I15,359
Actuarial gains/(losses) relating to
defined benefit pension scheme

16,702
167

115,526

26

26

Unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of
lnvestment properties

1,586

1,586

Other comprehensive income for the
year

1,612

1,612

Balance at 31 March 2018

116,971

167

1'17,139

The notes on pages 35 to 58 form part of these financial statements
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Staternent of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2018

Note

2018

2017

Ê'000

f'000

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Housing properties
Other fixed assets
lnvestments properties
lnvestments

10

581,861

523,033

11

5,637
3,050

5,740

12
12a

1,905

590,548

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Properties for sale
Trade and other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

13

13,274

7,765

14

7,465
21,919

14,484

42,659

27,917

(20,064)

(21,7831

22,594

6,034

15

CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

530,679

16

NET CURRENT ASSETS

5,569

613,142

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one

year 17

(495,613)

536,712

(437,4711

PROVISION FOR LIABLITIES

Pension Liability

27

TOTAL NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
lncome and Expenditure Reserve

(3e1)

(4171

117,138

98,824

116,971

98,657

167

167

117,138

98,824

22

Restricted reserve

TOTAL RESERVES

The notes on pages 35 to 5B form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 5 July2018.

J
Bob

- Chair

James Sfee/

-

Board

Member

David Skinner - Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows
As at 31 March 2018

Nofe

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIV¡TIES
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of fixed assets - housing properties
Depreciation of fixed assets - housing component write off
Depreciation of fixed assets - other
Amortised grant
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment properties
lnterest payable and finance costs
lnterest received and income from investments
Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit scheme
Surplus on sale of fixed assets - housing properties
Loss on sale of fixed assets - other
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets - housing properties
Transaction costs for sale of housing properties
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - other
Surplus / (deficit) on disposal of Fixed Asset lnvestment
(lncrease) / decrease in stocks
lncrease in trade and other debtors
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other creditors

10
11

Receipt of grant
lnterest received and income from investments
Proceeds from Disposal of lnvestments
Transfer of funds to lnvestments

NET TNCREASE / (DECREASE) rN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

15,947

5,612

4,768

177

85

345

311

7

(1,586)
8,108

(278)
27

(26)

(1,659)
6,530
(1 38)
127

(2,521)

(2,632)

5,186
(e6)

7,578

3

11

13
14

16,17

11

12

1,905
(5,509)
(1,897)
(835)

(347)
3,525

(2,625)
887

25,238

32,152

(68,025)

(69,564)

(246\
(1,464)

(374)
4,746
138

2,976
(1,eos)

12a

(65,354)

21
21
21

(208)

38

4,103
278

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lnterest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

18,314

(r,6ee)

Net cash from investing activities

New loans
Debt issue costs incurred
Repayment of loans

2017
Ê'000

3,10,18

Net cash from operations

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets - housing properties
Purchase of fixed assets - other
Purchase of investment properties

2018
Ê'000

(63,983)

(9,665)
111,500
(676)
(53,608)

42,500
(1,276)

47,551

29,779

7,435

(8,380)

(3,065)

(2,0521

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

14,484

16,536

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

21,919

14,484
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For year ended 31 March 2018

I

LEGALSTATUS
Hightown Housing Association Limited (the Association) is registered with the Financial Conduct
Authority under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 with registration 18077R
and registered with the Regulator of Social Housing as a registered housing provider with registration
L2179. lt is an Exempt Charity.

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Association are prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) including Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102) and the
Housing SORP 2014: Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers
and comply with the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

The Board is satisfied that the current accounting policies are the most appropriate for the
Association.

Significant Judgements and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements require management to make significant judgements and
estimates.

The items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been made
include:

Capitalisation of oropertv development costs
Judgement is required to identify the point in a development scheme project where the
scheme is more likely to go ahead than not to continue, thus allowing capitalisation of the
associated development costs. After capitalisation, management monitor the asset and
consider whether any changes indicate that any impairment has arisen.
Allocation of costs for mixed tenure developments

On a scheme with a mixed tenure development (i.e. it includes both Affordable rented
properties and Shared Ownership properties) an allocation of the land cost, property build
costs, professionalfees and other costs is made between the relevant units.
Allocation of costs for shared ownershio oroperties
Where costs are not separately invoiced, costs are allocated to shared ownership properties
on the basis of the split of the scheme units.
Recoverabilitv of the cost of orooerties develooed for shared ownership sale
Management review the housing market regularly and ensure that properties remain in
demand.
a

Useful lives of deoreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting
date based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to the

potential technological obsolescence that may change the utility of lT equipment and
software, changes to decent homes standards which may require more frequent replacement
of key components and changes to the ability to let the property may reduce the economic life
of the property. The total of accumulated depreciation appears in Note 10.
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Turnover
Turnover comprises rental income receivable in the year, income from property sales, other services
included at the invoiced value (excluding VAT) of goods and services supplied in the year and
revenue grants. Turnover is recognised on the following basis:

-

Rental income is recognised on a time apportioned basis and is stated net of losses from void
properties;
Fees and income from the provision of Residential Care, Supporting People and Management
Services are recognised as the services are provided;
lncome paid in respect of cyclical and major repairs is deferred until such time as the related
expenditure is incurred;
lncome from the sale of 1s Tranche Shared Ownership properties is recognised as properties
are sold.

Value Added Tax
The Association charges value added tax (VAT) on some of its income and is able to recover part of
the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The financial statements include VAT to the extent that it is suffered
by the Association and not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs. The balance of
VAT payable or recoverable at the year-end is included as a current liability or asset.
lrrecoverable VAT is charged to the income and expenditure account and is allocated to the different
activities on the same basis as the corresponding costs are allocated.

Holiday Pay Accrual
A liability has been recognised to record any unused holiday pay entitlement accrued at the balance
sheet date and accrued to future periods.
lnterest Payable
lnterest is capitalised on borrowings to finance developments to the extent that it accrues in respect of
the period of development if it represents either:

a)
b)

lnterest on borrowings specifically financing the development programme after deduction of
interest on social housing grant (SHG) in advance; or

lnterest on borrowings of the Association as

a whole after deduction of interest on SHG

in

advance to the extent that they can be deemed to be financing the development programme.

lnterest is capitalised from the date of the site acquisition to the date of practical completion. Other
interest payable is charged to the income and expenditure account in the year.

Pensions

The Association participates in four multi-employer defined benefit schemes; the Social Housing
Pension Scheme (SHPS), the Pensions Trust Growth Plan, the Buckinghamshire County Council
Pension Fund' and the NHS Pension Scheme. The latter two schemes relate to employees who
transferred to the Association under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations (TUPE).
For the SHPS, Growth Plan scheme and NHS scheme, it has not been possible to identify the share

of underlying assets and liabilities belonging to individual participating employers. The income and
expenditure charge represents the employer contribution payable to each scheme for the accounting
period.
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The Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund is accounted for under FRS102. The operating
costs of providing retirement benefits to participating employees are recognised in the accounting
periods in which the benefits are earned. The related finance costs, expected return on assets, and
any change in fair value of the assets and liabilities are recognised in the accounting period in which
they arise. The operating costs, finance costs and expected return on assets are recognised in the
income and expenditure account with any changes in fair value of assets and liabilities being
recognised in the statement of total recognised surpluses and deficits.
The Association also participates in a Defined Contribution Scheme with the Social Housing Pension
Scheme. This is the main pension fund and auto-enrolment vehicle for the Association

Supported Housing

The treatment of income and expenditure in respect of supported housing projects depends on
whether the Association carries the financial risk or not.

Where the Association holds the support contract with the relevant commissioning authority and
carries the financial risk, all the project's income and expenditure is included in the Association's
income and expenditure account (see note 3).
Where the Association has appointed an agent to provide support to the service users and the agent
holdb the support contract with the commissioning authority (and carries the financial risk), the income
and expenditure account includes only that income and expenditure which relates solely to the
Association.

lnterest Rate Fixings
The Association uses interest rate fixes to reduce its exposure to future increases in the interest rates
on floating rate loans. Payments made under such fixes are accrued over the payment period on a
straight-line basis and adjusted against interest payable on the loans.

Housing Properties

Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost less
depreciation. Cost includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, development costs, interest
charges incurred during the development period and expenditure incurred in respect of
improvements.

lmprovements are works to existing properties, and component replacements which have been
treated separately for depreciation purposes, which result in an increase in the net rental income,
such as a reduction in future maintenance costs, or result in a significant extension of the useful
economic life of the property in the business. Only the direct overhead costs associated with new
developments or improvements are capitalised. Direct overhead costs comprise the costs of staff
time, including salary costs and other apportioned direct costs, incurred on the developments from the
date from which it is reasonably likely that the development will go ahead, to the date of practical
completion.

Shared Ownership properties are split proportionately between current and fixed assets based on the
first tranche proportion. The first tranche proportion is accounted for as a current asset and the related
sales proceeds shown in turnover. The remaining element of the Shared Ownership property is
accounted for as a fixed asset and any subsequent staircasing is treated as a part disposal of a fixed
asset. Shared Ownership properties are included in housing properties at cost less any provisions
needed for impairment.

The net surplus on the sale of housing properties (including Shared Ownership property staircasing)
represents proceeds less applicable cost and expenses. Any applicable social housing grant is
transferred to the Recycled Capital Grant Fund held in long term creditors. Right to Acquire and Right
to Buy sales are accounted for by transfer of the net surplus and the associated grant to the Disposal
Proceeds Fund also held in long term creditors.
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Notes to the Financia! Statements
For year ended 31 March 2018
Depreciation of Housing Properties
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. Freehold land is not
depreciated.

The Association depreciates freehold housing properties by component so as to write down the net
book value of housing properties to their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis, over their
estimated useful economic lives in the business. The depreciable amount is arrived at on the basis of
original cost less residual value.
Major components are treated as separable assets and depreciated over their expected useful
economic lives or the lives of the structure to which they relate if shorter, at the following annual rates:
Asset

Component

Useful

Lircs

Rate

Building Structure
- houses

100 years

1.00%

- flats

80 years

1.25%

Windows and extemal doors

80 years
30 years

3.33o/o

Bathrooms

30 years

3.33%

Electrical systems

30 years

3.33%

Lifts

30 years

3.33Yo

Kitchens

20 years

5.00%

Heating systems

15 years

6.66%

Roof

1.25%

Properties held on leases are amortised over the life of the lease or their estimated useful economic
lives in the business, if shorter.

Property partially sold under shared ownership leases are not depreciated as the iesponsibility for
repair and maintenance is held by the shared owner and the market value of Hightown's retained
equity exceeds the book cost.

Land Received At Less Than Market Value
Where land is transferred by local authorities and other public bodies for consideration below marketvalue, the difference between the market value and the consideration given is added to cost at the
time of the donation and credited to other capital grants.

SocialHousing Grant
Social Housing Grant (SHG) is receivable from Homes England (formerly the Homes and Communities
Agency and local authorities. The amount of SHG receivable is calculated on a fixed basis depending
on the size, location and type of housing property. SHG due or received in advance is included as an
asset or liability as appropriate. SHG received in respect of revenue expenditure is credited to the
income and expenditure account in the same period as the expenditure to which it relates using the
accrual model set out in FRS102 and the Housing SORP 2014for government grants.

SHG is subordinated to the repayment of loans by agreement with Homes England. SHG released on
sale of a property is normally available to be recycled and is credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund
and included in the balance sheet in creditors. Although SHG is treated as grant for accounting
purposes, it may nevertheless become repayable if the conditions under which the grant was made are
not complied with, for example if the properties to which grant was designated cease to be used for the
provision of affordable rental accom modation.
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Other Grants
These include grants from local authorities and other organisations. Government Grants are dealt with
under the accrual model within FRS102 and are credited to the income and expenditure account in the
same period as the expenditure to which they relate. Other grants are dealt with under the performance
method and recognised to income and expenditure once the conditions for the grant are complete.

lmpairment of social housing properties

The housing property portfolio is assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Where indicators are identified then a detailed assessment is undertaken to compare the
carrying amount of assets or cash generating units for which impairment is indicated to their
recoverable amounts. An option appraisal is carried out to determine the option which produces the
highest net realisable value. Valuations on rental return or potential sale proceeds are obtained and
used to inform the options. The Association looks at the net realisable value, under the options
available, when considering the recoverable amount for the purposes of impairment assessment. The
recoverable amount is taken to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or value in use of an
asset or cash generating unit. The assessment of value in use may involve considerations of the
service potential of the assets or cash generating units concerned or the present value of future cash
flows to be derived from them appropriately adjusted to account for any restrictions on their use. No
properties have been valued at VIU-SP.

lnvestment Properties
lnvestment properties consist of commercial properties not held for social benefit or for use in the
business. lnvestment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently carried
at fair value determined annually by external valuers and derived from the current market rents and
investment property yields for comparable real estate, adjusted if necessary for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. No depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value
are recognised in income or expenditure as appropriate.

lnvestments
lnvestments are held at market value. Any movement in the value of investments is recorded in the
Revaluation Reserve and the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

Other Tangible Fixed Assets
Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write them down to their
estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold
land. The principal annual rates used for other assets are:
Freehold offíce building
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computers / office equipment
Motor vehicles

2%
2/zo/o

lo

33o/o

10o/o

l20o/o

25%

Where assets comprise separate components as set out under housing properties depreciation policy
earlier, these components are depreciated over the liv,es of those components.
Reserves
Any unexpended income which is restricted as to its use, is treated as a restricted reserve. Transfers
are made between the revenue reserve and the restricted funds to represent the receipt of restricted
income and the subsequent expenditure of such income.
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Trust Funds
Funds held by the Association on trust for leaseholders are recognised as an asset of the Association
A corresponding creditor is also recognised.
Leaseholders'funds held for major repairs are maintained in separate interest bearing accounts for this
purpose and fall under a deed of trust dated 23rd June 1993. Any income received on the funds so held
is credited to leaseholders.

where the Association has control of the funds.

Loan lssue Costs and Premium

ln accordance with SORP 2014 the issue costs of loans have been deducted from the gross loan
values. lssue costs are amortised over the period of the loan to which they relate. Similarly the premium
received on the loan proceeds from The Housing Finance Corporation (THFC) bond issue is amortised
into the Statement of Comprehensive lncome to offset interest paid over the life of the loan.

Allocation of Gosts
Costs are allocated to the different categories of social housing activities on the following basis:

-

Direct costs are allocated to the relevant activity.
Where direct costs relate to a number of different activities they are apportioned to those
different activities on a fair basis.
Overhead costs are allocated to different activities, primarily based on the estimated time
spent by the Association's staff in managing the different activities.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund
The Recycled Capítal Grant Fund (RCGF) contains social housing grant released by property sales
(other than Right to Acquire or Right to Buy) for re-use on funding new developments. lf unused within a
three year period from the start of the following financial year, it will be repayable to Homes England
with interest. Any unused capital grant held which it is anticipated will be either repaid or used within one
year is disclosed in the balance sheet under "creditors: amounts falling due within one year". The
remainder is disclosed under "creditors: amounts falling due after one year".

Disposal Proceeds Fund
The Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF) contains social housing grant released by property sales under
Right to Acquire or Right to Buy for re-use on funding new developments. lf unused within a three year
period, it will be repayable to Homes England with interest. Any unused capital grant held which it is
anticipated will be either repaid or used within one year is disclosed in the balance sheet under
"creditors: amounts falling due within one year". The remainder is disclosed under "creditors: amounts
falling due after one year". As of 1 April 2017 revised guidance from the Regulator has resulted in the
cessation of this fund.

Mixed Tenure Schemes

The surplus on sales of properties on mixed tenure development schemes is reduced in accordance
with SORP 2014. Where a development is evaluated as a single scheme with more than one element
and where one or more of those elements are expected to generate a surplus and one or more of the
other elements has an EUV-SH value that is below cost less attributable grant (a shortfall), then it is not
appropriate to recognise all of the surplus on sale from that scheme. The sales surplus is reduced by the
shortfall through the apportionment of costs to each element of the scheme.

Service Charges
All service charges are variable service charges. Where there is any difference between the estimated
cost recovered from tenants and leaseholders and the actual cost incurred, any such shortfall or surplus
arising is carried forward and either collected or refunded against the future years charge. Any shortfall
or surplus arising is shown in the Statement of Financial Position within debtors or creditors as
appropriate.
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NOTE A

- PARTICULARS

OF TURNOVER, COST OF SALES, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS

Turnover
Ê'000

SOCIAL HOUSING LETTINGS (See Note 3 B )
OTHER SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Current asset property sales
Supporting People contract income
Management services
Aborted development costs
Other

ACTIVITIES OTHER THAN SOCIAL HOUSING
Commercial Properties
Registered nursing home
Other - Charity Shop

55,468

Operating
costs
Ê'000

Operating
surplus
Ê'000

Operating
surplus

f'000

f'000

€'000

(36,894)

18,574

50,134

10,522

(7,448)

997

(ee7)

1,126

(1,117)

553

(e3)
(1 00)

(e3)
453

588

13,198

(9,755)

3,443

119

112

110

(7)
(603)
(145)

749

(755)

520

69,415

SURPLUS ON SALE OF PROPERTIES & OTHER FIXED ASSETS
TOTAL

Turnover

2017
Operating
costs

2018

Continuing activities

(47,4041

3,074-

I

9,412
1,305
756

(33,045)
(7,319)
(1,305)

17,089

2,093

(66s)

91

(1

oe)

(1

1e)

0e)
469

12,061

(9,517)

2,544

(83)
(35)

490

(604)

(114)

100

(128)

(28)

(6)

s90

(7321

(1421

62,785

(43,2941

22,011

(1

19,491

2,521

2,975

24,532

22,466
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PARTICULARS'OF TURNOVER, COST OF SALES, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS (continued)
NOTE B.INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FROM SOCIAL HOUSING LETTINGS
General
Needs
Housing
Ê'000

Supported
Housing

f'000

Low Cost
Home
Ownership
Ê'000

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges
Service charge income
Charges for support services
Amortised Government Grants
Other revenue grants

25,058

3,183

2,628

1,293

1,332

1,315

TURNOVER FROM SOCIAL HOUSING LETT¡NGS

INCOME

EXPENDITURE
Management
Support Service costs
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties

OPERATING EXPENDITURE ON SOCIAL HOUSING
LETTINGS
oPERATTNG SURPLUS / (DEFTCTT) ON SOCIAL HOUSING
LETTINGS

Void losses

Care Homes

2018
Total

2017
Total

Ê'000

Ê'000

f'000

'176

701

31,045
3,326

27,836
3,249

111

75

132

l,699

1,659

3

252
14,944

6

4,334

19,287

17,315

27,669

19,822

3,467

4,510

55,468

50,134

Residential

111

(2,124)
(250)
(1,389)
(2,355)

(1,761)
(14,211)
(1,332)
(4e0)
(58)
(166)
(26)
(sB7)

(717)
(608)

(213)
(5,160)

(12,816)
14,853

(376)

(18,631)

1

,191

(2e1)

(181)

(r)
(551)
(e)
(4)
(3)
(13)

(7621
2,705

(1

6e)

(607)
(3,501)
(386)
(78)
(5)
(76)
(3)

(4,673)
(17,963)
(3,658)

(2e)

(5,789)

(2,9321
(7841

(850)
(2451

(4,685) (36,894)
(175)

18,574

(836)

(4,1ee)
(16,332)
(3,566)
(2,639)
(401)
(813)

(243)
(4,852)

(33,045)

17,089

(435)
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4

SUPPORTED HOUSING MANAGED BY AGENCIES

The Association has 16 supported housing tenancies (2017:105) that are managed on its behalf
under management agreements by other bodies that carry the financial risk. The Association's
Statement of Comprehensive lncome includes only the income and expenditure for which it retains
responsibility.

5

ACCOMMODATION IN MANAGEMENT
2018

2017

No

No.

2,355

2,333

1,069

670

3,424

3,003

369
486

460

At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of
accommodation was as follows:

Social housing
General needs housing
Social rent
Affordable rent

-

lntermediate rent
Supported housing
Housing for older people
Low Cost Home Ownership (Shared Ownership)

81

81

742
737

659
717

2

12

5,841

5,183

153

195

5,994

5,378

8

I

Totalowned and managed

6,002

5,386

Units in development at the year end

1,083

906

Leasehold properties
Held for development

TotalOwned
Accommodation managed for others

TotalManaged
Non-social housing
Registered nursing home bed spaces

6

251

OPERATING SURPLUS
2018
Ê'000

2017
Ê'000

5,612

4,768

This is arrived at after charging / (crediting):
Depreciation of housing properties
Accelerated depreciation on replaced components
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Operating lease rentals
Auditors' remuneration (excluding VAT)
- fees payable to the Association's auditor for the audit of the financial
statements
- for non-audit services
- for leaseholder audits

177

85

345
386

311

2B

27

15
14

10
12

210
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INTEREST PAYABLE AND S¡MILAR GHARGES
Nofe
Loans and bank overdrafts
Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Net interest on net defined benefit pension liability

19

lnterest capitalised on construction of housing properties

10

2018

2017

Ê'000

f'000

10,281

8,404

11

14
90

52

10,344
(2,236)
B,1OB

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of
finance costs capitalised during the period

8

3.01%

9,508
(1,978)
6,530

3.24o/o

EMPLOYEES

2018
Emplovee costs:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

Ê'000
19,873

2017
Ê'000

1,624

18,099
1,457

608

627

22,105

20,183

2018

2017

No.

No.

79

71

14

11

Averaqe monthlv number of emplovees (full time equivalents):
Administration
Development
Housing, support and care

575

592

668

674

Staff numbers in Care & Supported Housing schemes are expressed against their standard 37.5 hour
per week. Other staff numbers are expressed against their standard 35 hour week.
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BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Board members
None of the Board members received emoluments. Total expenses reimbursed during the year to
Board members were Ê880 (2017: Ê2,583).

Executive Directors
The aggregate emoluments of the executive directors including pension contributions amounted to
f 756,045 (20 1 7 : î7 03,327 ).
The emoluments of the highest paid director, the Chief Executive, excluding pension contributions,
were Ê159,803 (2017 Ê152,355). Pension contributions in the year were Ê10,060 (2017: e9,960).
The aggregate amount of compensation payable to directors for loss of office during the year was
Ê

Nil(2017:f

Nil).

Employees
The full time equivalent number of staff whose remuneration payable in respect of the year excluding
pension contributions was more than Ê60,000, by salary band was as follows:
Salary band

Ê 60,000-f 69,999
t 70,000-Ê 79,999
Ê 90,000-Ê 99,999
Ê100,000 - f109,999
Ê110,000 - Ê119,999

f150,000 -e159,999

2018

2017

No.
3
2

No.
5

4

3

1

1

1

1

1

The executive directors are members of the Social Housing Pension Scheme as ordinary members of
the pension scheme and no enhanced or special terms apply.

The key management personnel of the Association are defined as the members of the Board of
Management, the Chief Executive and the executive management team as disclosed on page 1.
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1O

FIXED ASSETS

-

HOUSING PROPERTIES

Housing Properties in Properties in
Properties the course of the course of
held

for

lettings

Shared
Ownership
properties

Total

Ê'000

f'000

f'000

76,705

6,423

57,042

s60,280

52,080

11,773

63,853

1,699

537

2,236

completion

completion

Rental Units

Shared
Ownership

e'000

Ê'000
COST
At 1 April 2017

420,110

Additions

Capitalised lnterest
Com ponents Capitalised

Properties Completed

85,600

Transfer to properties
held for sale

(20e)

Disposals
As at 31 March 2018

1,130

1,130

(85,600) (11,139)

1l,139
(20e)
(1,780)

(1,282)

505,349

44,884

7,594

66,401

(3,062)

624,228

LESS: DEPRECIATION

As at 1 April2017

37,247

37,247

Charge for the year

5,612

5,612

Eliminated on Disposals

(4e2)

As at 31 March 2018

(4s2)
42,367

42,367

NET BOOK VALUE
As at 31 March 2018

462,982

44,884

7,594

66,401

581,861

As at 31 March2017

382,863

76,705

6,423

57,O42

523,033

)

Expenditure on works to existing properties
Com ponents capitalised

Amounts charged to income and expenditure account

2018
Ê'000

2017
Ê'000

,130

1,065

767

736

1,897

1,801

1
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2018

2017

Ê'000

f'000

36,1 06

2,726

133,324
3,225
124

1,699
18,014

1,659
16,315

158,545

154,647

Social Housing Grant
Deferred CapitalGrant
Recycled Capital Grant Fund

1

Disposal Proceeds Fund
Revenue Grant - l&E
Revenue Grant - Reserves

Housinq properties book value. net of depreciation. comprises:

Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings

2018

2017

Ê'000

f'000

536,585

469,086

45,276

53,947

581,861
Additions to properties include:

Development overheads capitalised
Capitalised interest

11

523,033

2018

2017

Ê'000

f'000

1,810

1

,524

2,236

1

,978

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS. OTHER
Freehold
land and
buildings
Ê'000

Fixtures

and

Furniture

and

Motor
vehicles

Total

Ê'000

f'000

Ê'000

40

7,749
246

Computer

fittings equipment equipment

['000

Ê'000

COST

As at 1 April2017
Additions

6,070
29

Disposals

As at 31 March 2018

324

283

1,032

78

24

115

(3)

(27)

(14s)

6,099

399

913

111
37

280

1,002

(1

75)

40

7,820

7
7

2,009
345

LESS: DEPRECIATION

As at 1 April2017
Charged in year

116

(1)

Released on disposal

225

753

16

169

(25)

(145)

(171)

As at 31 March 2018

1,029

147

216

777

14

2,183

NET BOOK VALUE
As at 31 March 2018

5,070

252

64

225

26

5,637

As at 31 March2017

5,157

212

58

280

33

5,740
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12

INVESTMENTPROPERTIES
2018
Ê'000

2017
Ê'000

At lApril
Additions
lncrease in value

At

3l

March

1,464
1,586
3,050

lnvestment properties are valued annually on 31 March at fair value, determined by an independent,
professionally qualified valuer. The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Royal
lnstitution of Chartered Surveyors'Appraisal and Valuation Manual. Details on the assumptions made
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are given in Note 2.
The surplus on revaluation of investment property arising of f1.6m (2017: [Nil) has been credited to
the Statement of Comprehensive lncome for the year.

12a

INVESTMENTS

2018
Ê'000

At lApril
Movement in value 2016117
Gilt disposal proceeds
Addition to UK clearing bank account
Transfer to bank

1,905

2,360
374
(3,004)
1,905

(1,905)

At 31 March

I3

2017
Ê'000

1,905

PROPERTIES FOR SALE

2018
Ê'000
Shared Ownership properties under construction
Shared Ownership properties awaiting sale
Vacant properties awaiting sale

Shared Ownership properties awaiting sale
Vacant properties awaiting sale

7,594

2017
Ê'000

209

6,423
929
413

13,274

7,765

5,471

No.

No

46

I

2

5

48

14

The stock of Shared Ownership properties is the cost of the anticipated first tranche sale to shared
owners.
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14

DEBTORS

2018
Due within one year
Rent and service charge arrears
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Estate service charges recoverable
Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

15

2017
Ê'000

1,489
(1,080)

1,275
(e18)

409

357

337

362

1,913
B07

2,154
3s6

3,999

2,339

7,465

5,569

2018
€'000

f'000

BANKANDCASH
Nofe
Bank accounts held in trust
Other bank accounts
Cash in hand

l6

f'000

2

2017

1,606

1,471

20,313

13,013

21,919

14,484

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Debt

Trade creditors
Rent and service charges received in advance
Revenue grants received in advance
Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Disposal Proceeds Fund
Other taxation and social security
Deferred CapitalGrant
Other creditors
Pension deficit reduction payments
Development and works retentions
Accruals and deferred income

2018

2017

Nofe

f'000

f'000

21

3,609
1,547
1,939

3,663
1,893

19

69

I,130

682
124
452

20

502
1B

1,436

31

1,666

1,129
589
5,664

2,258

20,064

1,666
987
567
8,375
1,869

21,783
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17

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Debt

Fund
CapitalGrant

Recycled Capital Grant
Premium on THFC Loan lssue *
Deferred
Leaseholder Sinking Funds
Leaseholder Trust Funds
Pension deficit reduction payments
Development and works retentions

2018

2017

Note

Ê'000

f'000

21

19

350,705
1,596

293,436
2,543

3,072

3,217

18

134,440

131 ,658

122

113

1,389
3,138
1,151

1,295

495,613

3,727

1,492
437,471

* ln January 2011 the Association received the proceeds of a bond issued by The Housing Finance Corporation
(THFC) at a premium to par. This premium will be amortised to the income and expenditure account over the
remaining life of the loan (21 years) to offset interest paid.

18

DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT
Note

At 1 April
Grant received in year
Grant recycled from RCGF and DPF
Grant recycled to RCGF
Released to income in the year

3

2018

2017

Ê'000

['000

133,324

130,938
4,565

3,779
1,058
(356)
(1,6ee)

136,106

At 31 March

2018
Amounts to be released within one year
Amounts to be released in more than one year

452
(e72)

(r,659)
133,324

Nofe

f'000

2017
Ê'000

16
17

1,666
134,440

1,666
131,659

136,106

133,324
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I9

RECYCLED CAPITAL GRANT FUND

Opening balance

I

April

Additions:
Grant recycled from Deferred CapitalGrant
Grant recycled from Statement of Comprehensive lncome
lnterest accrued
Drawdown:
New build

3,225

2,516

356
68

972
175

'11

14

2017

(452)

2,726

3,225

2018
e'000

['000

124

124

DISPOSAL PROCEEDS FUND

Opening balance

I

April

Additions:
Grant recycled
Drawdown:
New build

Closing balance

21

['000

(e34)

Closing balance 31 March

20

2018
€'000

2017

(124\

3l

124

March

DEBT ANALYSIS
2018
Loans
Due within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Total after one year
Total loans
Unamortised loan costs
Due within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Total after one year
Total unamortised loan costs

Ê'000

2017
Ê'000

3,995

3,977

4,011
21,105

67,691

3,984

328,858

224,793

353,974
357,969

296,458
300,435

(386)
(386)
(1,308)

(1,s75)

(3,269)
(3,655)

(314)
(314)
,183)
(1,525)

(1

(3,022)
(3,336)

continued
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Total
Due within one year

2018

2017

Ê'000

['000

3,609

3,663

3,625

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

19,797

3,670
66,508

327,283

223,258

Total after one year

350,705

293,436

Total

354,314

297,099

Securitv
Loans are secured by fixed charges on individual housing properties and the central office building
except for f58.5 million loans from Retail Charity Bonds plc where unencumbered assets of Ê76.05
million are retained.
Terms of reoavment and interest rates

The loans are repayable at intervals varying from half yearly to annually, and on

maturity

lnstalments of loans fall to be repaid in the period 2018 to 2039 (2O17:2017 to 2039).

The average interest rates payable on fixed rate loans at 3l March 2018 was 3.98% (2017:4.37o/o)
ranging from 0.96% to 10.47% (2017: 0.96% to 10.47o/o). Variable interest rates are based on LIBOR
plus agreed loan margin. The weighted average cost of all interest in 2017l18 was 3.04To (2017:
3.00%).

At 31 March 2018 the Association had Ê82.0 million of undrawn loan facilities (2017: Ê112.0 million)

22

SHARE CAPITAL
2018

2017

No.

No.

As at 1 April
Shares issued in the year
Shares surrendered during the year

24

29

(4)

(5)

As at 31 March

20

24

Shares of

î1 each,

rbsued and fully p.aid

The shares provide members with the right to vote at general meetings but do not provide any rights
to dividends or distributions on a winding up. All Board members are shareholders.
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FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
2018
Ê'000

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board but not contracted

2017
Ê'000

133,929

74,913
87,419

262,640

162,332

128,711

The Association is forecasting to spend f61 .9 million of the contracted commitments in 2018i19.
This will be financed by use of the undrawn committed loan facilities, first tranche shared ownership
sales, social housing grant, cash in hand, and surplus revenue cash generated in the year.

A further Ê36.4 million contracted commitment is forecast to be spent in 2019120 with the remaining
Ê30.4 million forecast to be spent over the 5 years thereafter. The Association's policy is to ensure
that expenditure is only committed as funding resources are made available subject to complying with
its policy on maintaining financial headroom.

24

LEASING COMMITMENTS
The payments which the Association is committed to make under operating leases are as follows:
2018
Office equipment and vehicles:
- Within one year
- Between one and five years
- After five years

25

f'000

2017
Ê'000

s60

34

672

13

1,232

47

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Association's financial liabilities are sterling denominated. After taking into account interest rate
fixings, the interest rate profile of the Association's financial liabilities at 31 March is as below:
2018
Nofe
Floating rate
Fixed rate

Total

151,133
206,836

169,687

357,969

300,435

(3,655)

Loan costs
21

2017
Ê'000

['000

354,314

130,748

(3,336)
297,099

The fixed rate financial liabilities have a weighted average interest rate of 3.98% (2017: 4.37%) and
the weighted average period for which it is fixed is I 1 .9 years (2017: 14.6 years).
The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank loans and overdrafts that bear interest at rates
linked to the London lnterbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus agreed loan margin.
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26

RELATED PART¡ES
There were no related party transactions in the year

27

PENSIONS

Hightown Housing Association Limited (Hightown) participates in four multi-employer Defined Benefit
schemes: the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), the Pensions Trust Growth Plan, the
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund and the NHS Pensions Scheme. The latter two

schemes relate to employees who transferred to Hightown under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE).
Hightown participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme Defined Contribution section as its autoenrolment scheme.
Hightown has operated a Defined Contribution (DC) section within SHPS for all new employees since
1 November 2013. Prior to this date, Hightown operated Defined Benefits structures within SHPS - a
Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) with l/80th accrual; a Career Average Revalued
Earnings section with l/60th accrual for staff employed prior to 1 April 2010; and a Final Salary
Scheme sectionl/60th accrual for staff employed prior to 1 April 2007. These defined benefit sections
are closed to new entrants but there remain active employees who continue to accrue future benefits.
The discounted agreed future contributions towards the past service deficit under the Final Salary and
CARE sections is shown under creditors in notes 16 and l7 previously.

An analysis of the SHPS membership is as follows:
31 March

2018

Final

CARE

CARE

Salary

l/60ths

1/80ths

Sub Total
Defined

SHPS DC

Total

Benefit
Active

18

21

17

56

720

776

Deferred

97

32

24

153

301

454

Pensioner

99

13

0

112

0

112

Total

214

66

41

321

1,021

1,342

CARE
1/60ths

CARE
1/80ths

Sub Total
Defined
Benefìt

SHPS
DC

Total

31May 2017"

Final

Salary

*

Active

22

23

19

64

675

739

Deferred

98

32

23

153

147

300

Pensioner

95

12

0

107

0

107

Total

215

67

42

324

822

1,146

Data at 31 March 2017 not available
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A.

SOCIAL HOUSING PENSION SCHEME

-

TPT Retirement Solutions

Hightown participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500
non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. lt is not possible for
Hightown to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit
scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into
force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and
Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for
funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore Hightown is potentially
liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share
of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally
required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from
the scheme.

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014.
This actuarialvaluation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of Ê3,123m, liabilities
of f4,446m ahd a deficit of Ê1,323m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the
participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid, in combination from all
employers, to the scheme as follows:

Deficit contributions
Tier

1

f40.6m per annum

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2020:

(payable monthly and increasin g by 4.7o/o each year on 1st April)

Tier 2

128.6m per annum

From 1 April2016 to 30 September2023:

(payable monthly and increasingby 4.7% each year on lst April)

Tier 3

î32.7m per annum

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026

(payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 1st April)

Tier 4

t31 .7m per annum

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2O26:

(payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on l st April)

Note that the scheme's previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September
1 ; this valuation was certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of î2,062m, liabilities of
Ê3,097m and a deficit of €1,035m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the Tier
201

1, 2 & 3 deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where Hightown has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the
Association recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of
the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present
value is calculated using the discount rate of 1.72o/o (2017:1.33%). The unwinding of the discount
rate is recognised as a finance cost.
Hightown has been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from
the Scheme, based on the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 September 2016. At this date the
estimated employer debt for Hightown was f33,553,231 (3O September 2015: î25,952,397).
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B.

THE SHPS GROWTH PLAN

-

TPT Retirement Solutions

Hightown participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some
1,300 non-associated participating employers. The scheme is a defined benefitscheme in the UK. lt
is not possible for Hightown to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as
a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into
force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and
Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for
funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The scheme is classified as a'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is potentially
liable for other participating employers'obligations if those employers are unable to meef their share
of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally
required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from
the scheme.

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2011. This valuation
showed assets of Ê780m, liabilities of Ê928m and a deficit of Ê148m. To eliminate this funding
shortfall, the Trustee has asked the participating employers to pay additional contributions to the
scheme as follows:

Deficit contributions
From

1

April 2013 to 31 March 2023:

f13.9m per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2014. This valuation
showed assets of Ê793m, liabilities of Ê970m and a deficit of î.177m. To eliminate this funding
shortfall, the Trustee has asked the participating employers to pay additional contributions to the
scheme as follows:

Deficit contributions
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2025:

From

I

April 2016 to 30 September 2028:

f.12,945,440 per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by

3o/o

each on 1st April)

f54,560 per annum
(payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April)

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with their
estimated share of the Series 1 and Series 2 scheme liabilities.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where Hightown has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement
Hightown recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of
the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The
present value is calculated using the discount rate of 1,71o/o (2017:1.32%). The unwinding of the
discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.
Hightown has been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from
the Plan based on the financial position of the Plan as at 30 September 2016. As of this date the
estimated employer debt for Hightown was î75,279,

Page 56

Hightown Housing Association Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For year ended 31 March 2018
The 2011 valuation revealed a deficit of Ê148m (B41Yo funded). Under the deficit recovery plan
Hightown is required to pay Ê5,901 per annum rising by 3% per annum compound for a further I
years from 1 April 2018.

C.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENS¡ON FUND

Plan Gharacteristics and Associated Risks

The LGPS is

a

defined benefit statutory Fund administered in accordance with the Local
2013 and currently provides benefits based on career

Government Pension Scheme Regulations
average revalued earnings.

On an Employer's withdrawal from the plan, a cessation valuation will be carried out in
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013, which will determine the
termination contribution due by Hightown, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the
Fund Actuary.

ln general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that Hightown is exposed to a
number of risks:
a

lnvestment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which
have volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns
over the long -term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a
deficit emerges;

a

a

a

lnterest rate risk. The Fund's liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows.. As the Fund holds assets such as
equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way;
lnflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may
emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation; and
Longevity risk. ln the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will
emerge in the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.

ln addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Buckinghamshire County Council
there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with
insufficient assets to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining
Pension Fund,
employers.

All of the risks above may also benefit Employers e.g. higher than expected investment returns or
employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining
employers.

Employer Mem bershi p Statistics
The membership data as at

3l

Member data

March 2016 is as follows:
Number

Salariesi Pensions
Ê'000

Average Age

Actives

1

28

53

Deferred Pensioners

2

16

52

Pensioners

5

22

66

The service cost for the year ending 3l March 2018 is calculated using an estimate of the total
pensionable payroll during the year. The estimated total pensionable payroll during the year is
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€26,000. The projected service cost for the year ending 31 March 2019 has been calculated
assuming payroll remains at this level over the year.
Scheduled Gontributions
The table below summarises the minimum employer contributions due from Hightown to the Fund
over this inter-valuation period. The calculated cost of accrual of future benefits is 18.8% of payroll
p.a.

Minimum employer contributions
due for the period beginning
Percent of payroll
Plus monetary amount f'000

Statement Of Financial Position
Net oension deficit as at
Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of Fund assets (bid value)

Deficit

1

April2019

1

1 April2017

April2018

18.8o/o

18.8%

18.8o/o

7

5

4

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

f'000

Ê'000

Ê'000

1,086
695

1,086
669

864

391

417

290

574

Statement Of Profit or Loss For The Year
Year to

Year to

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Ê'000

Ê'000

Service Cost

11

I

Net interest on the defined liability (asset)

11

11

The amounts recoqnised in the income and
expenditure statement

Adm inistration expenses

Totalloss

D

1

23

l9

NHS PENS¡ON SCHEME

At the 31 March 2018, therè were 12 active members in the NHS scheme (2017:13) who transferred
to Hightown under TUPE arrangements when services were transferred to Hightown. The NHS
scheme is an unfunded Government scheme and no pension fund deficit liability arises to Hightown.
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